
 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, August 4, 2015, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner Shon Small 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Assistant 

Engineer Matt Rassmussen; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Auditor 

Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Bob Woody, IT 

Department; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher; Marianne Ophardt, WSU; 

DPA Reid Hay and DPA Steve Hallstrom; Mary Heather Ames, Public Works; Assessor Bill 

Spencer; DPA Ryan Brown; Personnel Manager Lexi Wingfield.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of July 28, 2015 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

Chairman Delvin said that item “d” (Wondrack Letter of Agreement) was being pulled.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve items “a” through “f”, pulling “d”.  

Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Assessor 

a. Salary Request Statement 

Information Technology 

b. Purchase of Additional Memory for Cisco UCS Blades From Ednetics, Inc. 

Office of Public Defense 

c. Agreement w/M Alexander for Public Defense Services for Cause No. 15-5-00018-5  

Public Works 

e. Consulting Agreement for On-Call Surveying Services w/Huibregtse, Louman Associates 

f. Payment of On-Site Win-Cams Training w/Cascade Software Systems, Inc. 



 - 2 - 

MATRICS Interlocal Agreement 

 

Chairman Delvin presented the proposed interlocal agreement.  He said it put them one step 

closer and gave them 120 days to accomplish the other tasks or it would start back to the 

beginning. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the final proposed agreement for MATRICS 

as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Beaver said it gave 120 days to get it worked out and see if their programs could 

come together.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Safety Tax Update 

 

Loretta Smith Kelty gave a Powerpoint presentation and briefly discussed the following: 

 

 Phase I  

o Space Needs – currently getting drawings for PA Civil and OPD; WSU and 

Human Services were yet to be determined 

o Define Programs – working with the City of Kennewick to build a facility for 

Boys & Girls Club (would be using VIT money not public safety [$130,000];  

once it was built they would look at using public safety money  

 Phase II 

o Approve a Mental Health Manager - complete 3/15 

o Establish Reserve Fund – complete 3/15 

 Phase III 

o Approved Budget Requests – complete 7/15 

 Status – Hiring Positions 

o Mental Health Manager – having difficult time hiring for position 

o Superior Court Judge – 9/15 

o Legal Process Assistant (tbd after Judge) 

o Deputy Prosecuting Attorney – 9/15 

o Legal Secretary – 9/15 

o Office of Public Defense – Contract Attorney –tbd 

o Sheriff Deputy – complete 7/15 

o Inmate Processing Specialists – hiring process in the works 

 Phase IV 

o Authorize Budget Requests – 10/15 

 

Ms. Smith Kelty said she was looking for approval to go to public hearing on the four deputies, 

four vehicles, and the inmate management system and radio maintenance for the four deputies.  

Undersheriff Hatcher described the hiring process for a deputy and said it was pretty complex.  



 - 3 - 

He said they contracted with WA Public Safety and once they passed that test they would move 

forward with civil service, background checks, polygraph and psych testing, ordering a vehicle, 

and six months at the academy.  He said it took well over a year to get a deputy on the road and it 

was a pretty long in-depth process.   

 

The Board gave approval to move forward on the public hearing.   

 

PEDA Update 

 

Deb Heintz briefly updated the Board and mentioned the following: 

 

 Results of survey - TRIDEC will be signing an agreement to bring in more food and 

beverage business 

 Legends event – annual fund raising event for The Clore Center 

 Wine & Food Festival  

 Washington Small Business – press release (building permits and construction numbers) 

 

WSU – Programming & Beef Cattle Research Update 

 

Don Llewellyn, program director, discussed grants received for his program and said he wrote a 

grant to WSU to gather funding for a grad student on applied research and his educational 

program.  He said WSU worked with him and he introduced grad student Ely Walker who would 

be with them for two years to work on his Master’s program.   

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

 

Fire Chief Huntington, City of Richland, thanked the Board for its support for the interlocal 

agreement and said the chiefs were fully behind the agreement and ready and willing to make it 

successful. 

 

Fire Chief Duncan, Benton County #2, talked about the use of fire breaks.  He said that Benton 

#2 had been using them for 2 years but landowners were sometimes opposed; there were issues 

with wind causing problems with dust and private owners allowing them to cut on their land.  He 

said they received approval from Fish & Wildlife to use fire breaks on their land and had good 

cooperation and were using it as a training method.  Clean Air Authority did have a problem with 

the blowing dust. 

 

Chairman Delvin asked if it was worth it to put a task force together and Chief Duncan said he 

was not sure but they were just taking the opportunities as they arose.   

 

Howard Ellison, Kennewick, CID board member, inquired about using the rock quarry owned by 

the County.  He said in the past they had an agreement to use it and it was the right mix for 

maintaining the edges of the irrigation canal, however, the contract had expired and he didn’t 

know who to talk to about renewing it.  He said it was a really a problem for them without it 

since it cost a lot more on the open market.  He said there was some discussion about purchasing 



 - 4 - 

the land; he indicated there was a lot of product there and they didn’t use much but did have a 

need.   

 

Matt Rassmussen from the audience commented that originally the County didn’t think they 

could use the material.  However, it was re-evaluated and determined to be a quality product and 

had value to the County and they did not want to consider selling the property.   

 

Chairman Delvin commented they were also working on some other CID issues that needed to 

be resolved and when Dan Ford came back from vacation, he would be willing to set up a 

meeting to discuss it.   

 

Commissioner Small said the decision we made was made to utilize the County’s own product to 

be more resourceful and not for any other reason.   

 

Melissa Van Dyke, said she owned a house on Johnson and Wilgus Road, bought a year ago and 

they had no idea the intersection was so terrible.  She said there was an accident last week 

because somebody blew through the stop sign and that people would drive by at 80 to 90 mph 

and she was not exaggerating.  She said they were trying to make their corner visible by 

trimming trees, etc. and would do whatever they could to assist.  She expressed her concern 

about the safety of her children and animals and requested a 4-way stop sign on Johnson Road.  

She said that Public Works came out to review the area but she was upset a study had to be done 

and believed this needed to be a priority.   

 

Matt Rassmussen said they followed the Uniform Traffic Design Guidelines and the first step for 

a 4-way stop was to collect data to see if the volume met the criteria, although he didn’t think it 

would. However, poor site distance might be justification.  He said they would be putting a “Stop 

Ahead” sign on the northbound road would look at a bigger stop sign and putting in stop bars.  

He said they were putting the counter out this week and it would take about three days to collect 

the data.   

 

Harold Bender, Benton County, said he walked away from that accident last week and his wife 

was at home recovering from her injuries.  He said he had seen numerous accidents at that site 

and had a friend that was killed years ago.    He expressed his displeasure with the County and 

was very upset because he felt something could have been done prior to this date.  He said the 

accident was due to speed and visibility.   

 

Chairman Delvin said the issue was just now brought to their attention and they were attempting 

to do something.   

 

Merlin Brown said in 1955 he worked for Benton County as a road superintendent and that 

something needed to be done there.  He said “the buck stops here” and Benton County can do 

something.  He said he was concerned there were not enough workers in Prosser and was also 

concerned about the current vegetation program.   

 

Commissioner Small said the Public Works crew had been out to the intersection and they had 

asked for a bigger stop sign. 



 - 5 - 

Mr. Sparks said this Board had made some changes this year and they were implementing new 

policies and procedures.  He said they were in the process of hiring more maintenance people for 

Prosser and were making a lot of changes; he said they wanted to stop studying and start 

implementing.   

 

Ms. Van Dyke commented there had not been any maintenance done at her property this year.  

However, they were currently out there working on it and she believed it could be fixed and they 

would do whatever they could to help.   

 

Other Business 

 

Chairman Delvin said they received a letter from Wahkiakum County Commissioners asking for 

a letter in support to have the Governor delay the DOE Biosolids issue.  The Board agreed.   

 

The board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:16 a.m.   

 

Executive Session – Pending and Potential Litigation 

 

The Board went into executive session at 10:16 a.m. for 15 minutes to discuss pending and 

potential litigation.  Present were DPA Ryan Brown, DPA Reid Hay, DPA Steve Hallstrom, 

Loretta Smith Kelty, Lexi Wingfield, David Sparks, Cami McKenzie, and Auditor Brenda 

Chilton.  

 

The Board came out at 10:31 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive session.  

 

Executive Session – Performance of Public Official 

 

The Board went into executive session at 10:31 a.m. with DPA Steve Hallstrom for up to 30 

minutes to discuss the performance of a public official.  Also present were David Sparks, Loretta 

Smith Kelty, Ryan Brown, Lexi Wingfield, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out at 11:01 

a.m.  The Board went back into executive session for up to an additional 15 minutes.  The Board 

came out at11:10 a.m.  No decisions were made in executive session.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 07/17/2015 (CORRECTED) 

Transfers #: 07170509, 07171501-07171506 

Transfers #: 07171508, 07171510-17171515 

Total all funds: $645,670.98 

 

Check Date:  07/31/2015 

 

Warrant #: 125668-125814 

Total all funds: $4,800.90 

 

 



 - 6 - 

Transfers #: 07311501-07311507 

Total all funds:  $763,614.43 

 

Warrants #: 125820-125931 

Total all funds:  $509,167.78 

 

Warrants #: 125932 

Total all funds:  $2,000.00 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2015-535: Purchase of Additional Memory for Cisco UCS Blades From Ednetics, Inc. 

2015-536: Agreement w/M Alexander for Public Defense Services for Cause  

No. 15-5-00018-5  

2015-537: Consulting Agreement for On-Call Surveying Services w/Huibregtse, Louman 

Associates 

2015-538: Payment of On-Site Win-Cams Training w/Cascade Software Systems, Inc. 

2015-539: 2015 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement – Multi-Agency Three Rivers 

Information & Communications Services (MATRICS) 

 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:10 

a.m.  

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 


